
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

BARNET PARTNERSHIP BOARD 

DATE AND TIME 
 

THURSDAY 24TH MAY, 2012 
 

AT 8.30 AM 

VENUE 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 1, HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF BARNET PARNERSHIP BOARD (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Richard Cornelius, Leader of the Council 
 

Members 
 

Councillor Andrew Harper 
Councillor Helena Hart 
Councillor David Longstaff 
Councillor Robert Rams 
 

Councillor Daniel Thomas 
Alison Blair, NHS North 
Central London 
David Byrne, Barnet and 
Southgate College 
Steve Knight, Middlesex 
University 
 

Michael Morley, Job Centre 
Plus 
Tom Nathan, Brent Cross 
Shopping Centre 
T/Ch Supt Neil Seabridge, 
Metropolitan Police 
Dr Sue Sumners, Barnet 
Clinical Commissioning 
Group 
 

 
 
 

You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

 

Chief Executive’s Service contact:   
Andrew Nathan, 020 8359 7029, andrew.nathan@barnet.gov.uk 

 
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S SERVICE 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Welcome and Introductions  
 

 

2.   Governance of Barnet Partnership Board  
 

1 - 4 

3.   Health and Well Being Strategy - Presentation  
 

5 - 6 

4.   Supporting Skills and Employment in Barnet with a Focus on 
Young People Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET)  
 

7 - 24 

5.   Corporate Change Programmes - Strategic Reviews  
 

To Follow 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Andrew Nathan 
020 8359 7029.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text phone, may telephone our 
minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
BARNET PARTNERSHIP BOARD     24 May 2012 
 

ITEM NO:  2 
Governance of Barnet Partnership Board  
 
REPORT OF:  
Chief Executive, London Borough of Barnet  
 
SUMMARY AND PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
This report asks the Board to formally endorse the Terms of Reference and 
membership of the Board, to enable it to start its business.  
 
INPUT REQUESTED FROM BARNET PARTNERSHIP BOARD: 
 
To confirm the Terms of Reference and Membership of the Board as attached 
at Appendix A. 
 
CONTACT FOR FURTHER INFORNMATION: 
Andrew Nathan, Chief Executive’s Service 020 8359 7029 
(Andrew.nathan@barnet.gov.uk)  
 

   
Further Details: 
 
1. New proposals for the governance of strategic partnerships were agreed by 
Cabinet on 20 February 2012.  These are attached at Appendix ‘A’. The proposals 
were developed in consultation with partners and many of the final proposals 
reflected comments made during this process.   The Principal of Barnet and 
Southgate College has been subsequently added to the membership of the Board.  
 
2. Nevertheless, to ensure the new Board has an agreed understanding of its 
role and functions, members are requested to review and agree the Terms of 
Reference and proposed membership. 
 
3. The Barnet Partnership Board will review these on an annual basis.    

AGENDA ITEM 2

1



APPENDIX A 

BARNET PARTNERSHIP CONSTITUTION, MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF 
REFERENCE 
 
1. OBJECTIVE OF BARNET PARTNERSHIP 
 
The Barnet Partnership will act as an overarching partnership Board and only do 
what it can uniquely do rather than replicate the business of other meetings. It will 
act as a catalyst for action. 
 
The role of the Partnership is to: 
 

• Take an overview of the community’s needs and the cross-cutting challenges 
facing the Borough; 

• oversee the work of partnership boards; 

• learn lessons across the public service and commission new pieces of work 

• as a result, to be led by sub boards or task and finish project teams; and 

• unlock any barriers to successful joint working. 
 
The Board will fulfil any residual functions of a Local Strategic Partnership as 
required by Government guidance. 
 
 
2. STATUS OF BARNET PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
 
The Barnet Partnership Board is an unincorporated body and therefore it does not 
have a legal personality. Its members work collectively within their own individual 
legal frameworks. While the Board can provide strategic advice, any financial or 
commissioning proposals must also be ratified by individual partners at their 
appropriate level of authority. 
 
 
3. MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Barnet Partnership Board membership is appended. 
 
The Board will have the power to invite new members to ensure that the Partnership 
has a sufficiently broad representation to fulfil its remit and carry out its work 
programme. All new members should be proposed and seconded  
by a Board member and agreed at a meeting of the Board. 
 
The Board will also have the power to invite additional members, including from the 
business and/or voluntary and community sector, to present on specific agenda 
items or to address a particular set of circumstances. 
 
 

2



4. ORGANISATION OF PARTNERSHIP BOARD BUSINESS 
 
The Board will meet twice a year- typically once in the early autumn and once in the 
Spring, at key points in the business planning cycle. 
 
Paperwork will be kept to a minimum, while ensuring good principles of governance 
and transparency are followed. Partners will be engaged in the identification of 
priority areas of business for the Board. The Leader, on the advice of the Chief 
Executive, shall determine each agenda in the light of comments made. 
 
 
5. CHAIR 
 
The Chair of the Board shall be the Leader of Barnet Council (“the Leader”) or 
his/her nominee. Should the Leader be unable to be present, he/she will nominate 
another Board member to deputise as meeting chair. 
 
 
6. OPENNESS AND TRANSPARENCY 
Meetings of the Board will be held in public and agenda papers and minutes 
published on the Council’s website. 
 
An Annual Report will be made on the work of the Barnet Partnership and the 
Boards and Task and Finish Groups that it oversees. 
 
 
7. INITIAL MEMBERSHIP OF BARNET PARTNERSHIP 

• Leader of the Council (Chair) 

• Deputy Leader of the Council 

• Cabinet Member for Customer Access and Partnerships 

• Cabinet Member chairs of sub-boards: 
o Cabinet Member for Public Health 
o Cabinet Member for Safety and Resident Engagement 
o Cabinet Member for Education, Children and Families 

• Policing; Borough Police Commander 

• Health: NHS Borough Director Barnet for Barnet and/or Vice-Chair; and Chair 
of Clinical Commissioning Group 

• Higher Education: Middlesex University Deputy Vice-Chancellor 

• Further Education; Principal, Barnet and Southgate College 

• Jobs: District Manager, Job Centre Plus 

• Business: initially, Centre Manager, Brent Cross 
 
Membership of the Partnership could be widened to encourage wider dialogue with a 
broader range of contributors, including representatives from the local voluntary 
sector, business representatives and large employers, and the wider public sector 
(schools, fire, TfL). The procedure for doing this is set out in paragraph 3. 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
BARNET PARTNERSHIP BOARD  24 May 2012 
 

ITEM NO: 3 
 
HEALTH AND WELL-BEING STRATEGY 
 
REPORT OF:  Cabinet Member for Public Health and Director of Adult Social 
Care And Health 
 
SUMMARY AND PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
 
The Health and Well Being Board is currently consulting on its draft Health 
and Well-being Strategy, which is a new duty under the Health and Social 
Care Act. The Strategy, which has as its two sub themes Keeping Well and 
Keeping Independent, takes a broad view of health and the factors that 
engender good public health. It is therefore being presented to the Board to 
ensure that the right links are made with issues such as regeneration and 
employment, housing, community safety, learning and leisure. 
 
INPUT REQUESTED FROM BARNET PARTNERSHIP BOARD: 
 
To comment on the draft Strategy and to agree how through their 
organisations they can support its implementation. 
 
CONTACT FOR FURTHER INFORMATION: 
Kate Kennally, Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
kate.kennally@barnet.gov.uk  
 

   
Further Details: 
 
1. The Government’s NHS reforms, as contained in the Health and Social 

Care Act 2012, provide an enhanced role for local authorities in system 
leadership of local health and care, exercised through Health and Well-
Being Boards. Barnet’s Health and Well-Being Board has now been 
operating in shadow form for a year, chaired by the Cabinet Member for 
public health , and will assume full responsibilities in April 2013. 

 
2. Under the Act, Health and Well-Being Boards must agree a Strategy for 

the health and well-being of their local populations. Those responsible for 
commissioning- such as the NHS Commissioning Board and Clinical 
Commissioning Groups must have regard to the Strategy. 

 
3. A draft Strategy, ‘Keeping Well, Keeping Independent’ has been 

developed collaboratively, building on last year’s Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment of Health and Care, and is currently the subject of public 

AGENDA ITEM 3

5



consultation prior to being signed off in July 2012. The Strategy has four 
main themes: 

 

• preparation for a healthy life – that is, enabling the delivery of 
effective pre-natal advice and maternity care and early-years 
development; 

• wellbeing in the community – that is creating circumstances that 
better enable people to be healthier and have greater life opportunities; 

• how we live – that is enabling and encouraging healthier lifestyles; and 

• care when needed – that is providing appropriate care and support to 
facilitate good outcomes and improve the patient experience. 

4. Kate Kennally, Director of Adult Social Care and Health, will attend for this 
item to deliver a short presentation. 

 
5. It is important to note that this Strategy is about improving health and well-

being in its broadest sense and not just about clinical interventions. This 
can only be effectively delivered through all public services and it is 
therefore essential that all partners are aware of what the Health and Well-
being Board is trying to achieve, and where they may be able to use local 
leadership to help deliver the ambitious objectives in the Strategy.  

 
 

6



 
 
 
 
 
 
BARNET PARTNERSHIP BOARD Date of Meeting: 24 May 2012 
 

ITEM NO: 4 
 
Supporting skills and employment in Barnet, with a focus on young people not 
in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) 
 
REPORT OF:  The Leader of the Council  
 
SUMMARY AND PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
 

• The number of young people not in education, employment or training (NEET) in 
Barnet is below regional and national averages and the borough performs well 
compared with statistical neighbours. 

• However, the number of young people whose status is ‘not know’ is high and the 
economic climate creates cause for concern.  As such, supporting young people 
into employment remains a top priority for the council and its local partners. 

• Barnet is well placed to respond strongly to the NEETs agenda, with a diverse 
selection of training providers, a vibrant community sector and a large business 
sector present in the borough. 

• Enhancing the employment prospects for young people in Barnet who are NEET 
cannot be tackled by, or be the responsibility of, any one organisation.  Initiatives 
to support young people into work benefit from a partnership-led approach where 
vision, ideas, innovations, insight, best practice and, where appropriate, resource 
is shared as part of a coordinated response. 

 
INPUT REQUESTED FROM BARNET PARTNERSHIP BOARD: 
 
Members of the Board are asked to consider: 
 

• What their organisations are doing individually to support the NEETs and 
wider employment agenda, and where this support would benefit from input 
from and collaboration with partners; 

• Areas where a greater focus on joint working – in terms of sharing ideas 
and knowledge, best practice, support with marketing and communications 
and the sharing of contacts – would create added value; 

• Areas where support might overlap and where programmes and initiatives 
would benefit from greater coordination from partners; and 

• Opportunities – either now or in the future – for combining resources to 
support this agenda, to generate efficiencies to help resources go further 
and to create the environment for a coordinated, Barnet-wide response. 

 
CONTACT FOR FURTHER INFORMATION: 
Andrew Nathan, Chief Executive’s Service  
  

   

AGENDA ITEM 4

7



Detail: 
 
The number of young people in Barnet who are ‘NEET’ 
 
In recent years, the number of young people not in education, employment or 
training (NEET) in Barnet has been steadily falling and remains below regional and 
national averages (see supporting paper on NEETs).  However, economic conditions 
have contributed to the NEET figure rising again, which creates concern about: 
 

• The potential growth of the NEET figure as a consequence of the economic 
climate; 

• the high number of young people who’s status is ‘not known’ – some 17% of 
16-19 year olds, which is above the national average; 

• an increase in the percentage of longer-term NEETs; and  

• an increase in the number of younger people aged 16 – 24 who are JSA 
claimants. 

 
2.  Although Barnet’s performance in tackling NEETs remains strong – and the 
borough compares favourably with statistical neighbours – there is more that the 
council, working with its local public and third sector partners and the business 
community, can do to tackle the issue.  This remains a top priority for the council. 
 
Work in Barnet to reduce young people who are NEET 
 
3.  As the paper sent to Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in March sets out (included as background), the council has a number of 
programmes and initiatives in place to support young people into employment – 
through its integrated Youth Support Service, Positive Activities Programme in 
schools, and support to young people through the September Guarantee. 
 
4.  In addition, the council will ensure that it receives it fair share of the £1bn set 
aside by central government over the next three years to increase the participation 
of 16 -24 year olds in education, training and work, as well as ensuring that 
European funding is used to benefit Barnet residents.  This includes cash 
payments to encourage employers to recruit young people; extra incentive payments 
for employers to take on young people as apprentices; extra support through 
Jobcentre Plus in the form of weekly (rather than fortnightly) signing-on meetings, 
more time to talk to an adviser and a National Careers Service interview; and funding 
for 16 and 17 year old persistent NEETS to get them learning, on an apprenticeship 
or in a job with training. 
 
Supporting young people into employment – a partnership approach 
 
5.  In recognition of the level of importance that the council places on supporting 
young people into work and continuing to reduce the number of NEETs in the 
borough, additional funding was set aside in the council’s budget this year to support 
‘service priorities’.  A proportion of this resource will be used to fund a targeted 
package of support to help young people into work and provide businesses with 
financial support to overcome some of the barriers they face to taking on a young 
person.  A package of investment, to be delivered with the support of local partners, 
is being finalised and will be announced in June. 
 

8



6.  Enhancing the employment prospects for our NEETs cannot be tackled by, or be 
the responsibility of, any one organisation.  Initiatives to support NEETs can only be 
successful if they are implemented and delivered with the combined input and 
support from local partners.  Barnet is in a strong position to respond to this agenda 
– with a vibrant and diverse community sector, an excellent College and University 
and a large business sector. 
7.  There is much going on across the borough already to support this agenda, 
through programmes, events, workshops, training and support to increase the 
employment prospects of the borough’s young people. 
 
8.  Members of the Board are asked to consider and discuss: 
 

• What their own organisations are doing individually to support the 
NEETs and wider employment agenda, and where this support would 
benefit from input from and collaboration with partners; 

• Areas where a greater focus on joint working – either in terms of sharing 
ideas and knowledge, joint support with marketing and communications 
and the sharing of contacts – would create added value; 

• Any areas where support might overlap and where programmes and 
initiatives would benefit from greater coordination from partners; and 

• Opportunities – either now or in the future – for combining resources to 
support this agenda, to generate efficiencies to help resources go 
further and to create the environment for a coordinated, Barnet-wide 
response. 

  
 
 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                

 

 

Officer Contributors Flo Armstrong, Divisional Manager Youth Support Service  

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All  

Enclosures None 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

Not applicable 

Contact for further information: Flo Armstrong, Divisional Manager - 020 8359 7846 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Meeting Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date 15 March 2012  

Subject Young people Not in Education, Employment 
or Training (NEET) (Children’s Service - CPI 
5011) 

Report of Deputy Director, Children’s Service 

Summary 
The report shows the seasonal fluctuations in 16 – 18 year olds 
Not in Education, Training or Employment (NEET) for Barnet, 
London and nationally. Citing current data on NEETs and youth 
unemployment in Barnet, London and nationally, it shows that 16 – 
18 year olds NEET figures are still relatively low in Barnet although 
youth unemployment data for 18-24 years has nearly doubled 
numerically since January 2008.  

11



 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee note the report and make comments and recommendations as 

appropriate 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 6 December 2011, Agenda 

Item 6 - Corporate Performance Results 2011/12 – Quarter 2 – (2):  
 

That the Committee receive in-depth reports to be presented to the meeting scheduled 
for 7 March 2012 relating to the percentage of young people who are not in education,  
employment or training (NEET) (Children’s Service - CPI 5011). 

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Supporting young people to engage in education, employment or training supports the 

delivery of the following corporate priorities and policies: 
 

Corporate Plan - 2011/13 - especially the priority of ‘sharing opportunities, sharing 
responsibilities’ and the performance target to maintain the proportion of young people 
who are not in education, employment or training (NEET).  

 
Sustainable Community Strategy 2010 /20 - in particular the priority ‘investing in children, 
young people and their families’ which includes the priority objective ‘narrow the gap 
through targeting support at young people not fulfilling their potential’. Supporting young 
people to engage in education, employment and training also supports the priority ‘a 
successful London Suburb’ which includes the priority objective ’giving people the right 
skills to access employment opportunities’. 
  
Barnet Children and Young People Plan 2011/13  -  contains the priorities ‘equip young 
people with skills to improve their employability’ and ‘improve early identification of 
children and young people who may require additional support to access education, 
employment and training’.  
 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 There is a risk of an increase in young people and young adults who are not in 

employment, education or training, resulting in the corporate priorities and policy 
priorities not being achieved. 

 
4.2 An increase in young people not in employment, education or training may result in a 

reputational risk relating to resident perceptions. The 2010/11 Residents Perception 
Survey found that youth provision was a key concern with teenagers hanging around the 
streets being one of the top three residents’ concerns and 16 per cent of residents saying 
that not enough was being done for young people. 

 
4.3 Following the disorder between 6 and 10 August 2011 there is a risk of future public 

disorder. Work to reduce the percentage of young people not in education, employment 
or training will help to improve outcomes for young people, helping to mitigate against the 
risk of future disorder. 

 
 
 

12



 

5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Males and white British young people are overrepresented among young people not in 

education, employment or training (NEET) (see section 9.2.2). Vulnerable groups such 
as children in and leaving care and young mothers are more likely to be NEET. Targeted 
support to increase opportunities for these young people will help to reduce inequalities.  

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 

Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 Following the restructure of the service in April 2011 and further efficiencies commencing 

April 2012, the Youth Support Service will work with partners to maximise resources 
within the community and fill gaps in the delivery of universal provision.  

 
7. LEGAL  
 
           The local authority owes various statutory duties to young people between the age of   

16-18: 
 

• S11 Children Act 2004-duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and 
young persons 

• S10 Children Act 2004-duty to co-operate to improve the well being of children 

• S68 Education and Skills Act 2008-duty to make available to young persons and 
relevant young adults for whom it is responsible such services as it considers 
appropriate to encourage , enable or assist effective participation of those persons in 
education or training 

• S507B Education Act 2006-duty to secure young people’s access to positive activities 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees are contained within Part 2, Article 

6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The terms of reference of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees are included in the 

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules within Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.3 The Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee has within its terms of 

reference responsibility for scrutinising “the overall performance, effectiveness and value 
for money of Council services.” 

 
8.4 The Local Government Act 2000 determined that along with other responsibilities the 

remit of Overview and Scrutiny would include the responsibility to make 
recommendations to the executive on matters which affect the authority’s area or 
inhabitants. 

 
8.5 These responsibilities have been further strengthened by other legislation, including the 

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, and the Police and 
Justice Act 2006.   

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
9.1 In recent years the number of young people not in education, employment or training 

(NEET) in Barnet had been steadily falling below regional and national averages. 
However, economic conditions have meant that this NEET figure has been rising again. 

13



 

Barnet’s performance in tackling NEETs remains strong and although Barnet is 
performing well compared to statistical neighbours there is concern about:  

  

• The potential growth of NEETs dependent on economic climate 

• high number of unknowns, a proportion of who will need  support  

• increase in the percentage of longer-term NEETs 

• Increase in number of younger people 16 – 24 who are JSA claimants 
 

This report outlines current performance and the activities underway to help tackle youth 
unemployment in Barnet. In difficult economic climate, we should take into account that 
there is a risk that the number of NEETs could grow.  Supporting NEETs is a priority for 
the council and will remain a priority in 2012/13. 

 
9.2 16-18 Young People Not in Education, Employment or Training 
 
9.2.1  Current 16 – 18 NEET picture in Barnet 
 
 Graph one below shows the latest available data for Barnet, compared with the 
 previous two years. The most recent figure, from November, shows that 4.0 per cent of 
 16-18 year olds in Barnet were NEET (387 young people). 
 
 As can be seen from the graph, every September there is a national seasonal increase 
 in NEETs. This can be explained by records being adjusted to take account of the large 
 number of young people leaving Year 11 who suddenly join the 16-18 cohort – it takes 
 several months from September to November to work with schools and colleges to 
 ascertain the whereabouts and activity of this group. 
 
 

����

����

����

����

����

����

����

����

�	
��� ����� ������ ������ ������ ��	��� ������ ������ ������ ������ �� ��� �
���

����������	��
������������ !�

���"#�
���"�$$#"� �$$#"�"����%��

 
Graph 1 - Current NEET picture in Barnet 

 
9.2.2  Characteristics of 16- 18 NEET group in Barnet – November 30th 2011 
 (excerpts from Career Vision MI Report for LB Barnet) 

In November 2011 there were 9,971 young people of academic age Years 12-14, and 
270 of these were NEET. Males were over-represented and accounted for 60 per cent of 
NEETs compared with 51.2 per cent of the total cohort. 

 
 The ethnic analysis shows that white British young people are over-represented in the 
 NEET group, accounting for 34.8 per cent (94) of NEETs compared with 22.4 per cent of 

14



 

 the total cohort. This is a lower proportion than in November 2010 where there was a 
 42.7 per cent NEET white British compared to the 25.6 per cent of the overall cohort.  
 
 In contrast, Indian young people continue to be under-represented (1.1 per cent of 
 NEETs, 3.3 per cent of total cohort), although the disproportionality is less than in 
 November 2011 where Indian young people comprised 5 per cent of the cohort, but only 
 0.7 per cent of the NEET group. 
 
 African/White and Black African young people and those of any other ethnic group have 
 roughly equivalent proportionality of NEET young people to that of the wider cohort. 
  
 184 of the NEET young people were seeking employment or training; 23 were awaiting a 
 place on a course or training place; none were actively volunteering; two were 
 engaged in a focused personal development opportunity; 12 were teenage parents; three 
 were pregnant; and nine were NEET because of significant illness. 
 
 27.4 per cent (74) of young people in November have been NEET for three months or 
 less, which is down on the equivalent period for 2010 (55.0 per cent).  
 Long term NEETs (from six months to two years) have risen from 92 to 167 and more 
 than doubled in percentage terms between November 2010 and 2011 (rising from 30 per 
 cent to 61.9 per cent). 
 

 
 

Graph 2 - NEET Ethnicity top 10 - Nov 2011 

  

�����������	�
�����

����������������
����������
����� 

�������
����

�����������	����
����������
����

���������� ������
!���"
����

#����$������%���
�&������
����

������#��	�
��'�

�����������(����
)���&&���
�*�� 

�����������(����
����������
����

)���&&���
���� 

��+���%  ,� ���������,�"��'�+ �����������������+�%�-�$&���*'��

15



 

 
 
����������	
����������������	�����

��	
��� �� �� �� �� ��
� ��	����
��

����������	�
���� 	 �  	 	� ��

	�
���������
����� � � 	 	� ����

��
����������
����� �� 	� � 	 � 	����

��
����������
����� � 	� � � �� 	����

��
��������	����� �� ��  �� �����

	��������������� � �� 	� 	�� ���	�


����������������   � ����

��
�  � �! ��� �� ��� ���"�#

	�
���������
����� �� �� 	� � � ����

��
��������������� �� �� �� 	�� �	���

 
Graph 3 - NEET by duration - Nov 2011 

 
9.2.3 Ward Location of 16 – 18 NEETs 
 
 The numbers of NEETs in Barnet between November 2010 and 2011 have shown an 
 overall reduction, falling from 307 to 270, so comparisons by ward will appear more 
 significant when viewed in proportion rather than in absolute terms. During this period, 
 we have seen a decrease in the proportion of young people coming from the Underhill 
 ward, falling from 28 (9.1 per cent) to 18 (6.7 per cent), but an increase in the number of 
 NEET young people from Woodhouse ward from 13 to 18 (4.2 per cent to 7.0 per cent). 
 

 
Graph 4 - NEET ward location top 10 - Nov 2011 

 
9.2.4     Although the NEET figures for London and Barnet are relatively low, there has been a 

significant increase in the number of 16-19 year olds whose status is ‘not known’. In 
November 2011, this was 17.4 per cent of 16-19 year olds (and 14.6 per cent of 16-18 
year olds) in Barnet. This puts the Barnet ‘not known’ figures well above the National 
average and indicates there could be NEETs which are currently going uncounted. It 
should be noted however that recent data indicates a drop in these figures, in line with 
the cyclical nature of the NEET data. 

 
 
 

��������	
����� 

����
����

�������������
����
���������
���� 

 ��������
���� 

!����������
��"�

�����#��	�$��	
��%� 

&������������
��%�

�����������
����
!��������
����

���'����(&&)������*��������)�+�������, ������������,�(�-�./�������

16



 

 
 
9.3  Progress against NI 117 and 2010 target 
 
9.3.1 Overall, since the local authority started recording NEET data in 2005/06, Barnet’s 
 annual NEET percentage has fallen year on year and, at 4.0 per cent in November 
 2011, remains comfortably below the 2010 nationally set target for Barnet of 5.4 per 
 cent. 
 
 Because of the seasonal fluctuations, the annual NEET data, previously reported for all 
 local authorities as National Indicator 117, is based on the average percentage of young 
 people NEET over the three month period November to January. The Barnet annual 
 NEET percentage has dropped year on year since the local authority began recording in 
 2005/06 and has also remained below the London and England average, as well as 
 below our national target of 5.4 per cent. The table below demonstrates the steady fall 
 in NEET in Barnet. The equivalent figure for November 2011 – January 2012 is not yet  
 available. 
 
 Table 1 - National Indicator 117 (average NEET Nov-Jan) 

  Barnet London England 

2010/11 3.6% 5.0% 6.0% 

2009/10 3.8% 5.3% 6.4% 

2008/09 4.1% 5.8% 6.7% 

2007/08 4.6% 6.4% 6.7% 

2006/07 4.8% 7.5% 7.7% 

2005/06 6.2% 8.5% 8.2% 
 

We are still awaiting data for December and January 2011/12. Table 2 below relates to 
November to December data   comparisons 2008 – 2010 
 

 Table 2 -  

  Barnet London England 

November 2011 4.0% 4.7% 6.2% 

December 2011 N/A N/A N/A 

November 2010 3.7% 5.1% 6.1% 

December 2010 3.5% 5.0% 5.9% 

November 2009 3.8% 5.4% 6.5% 

December 2009 3.9% 5.3% 6.4% 

November 2008 4.0% 5.7% 6.7% 

December 2008 4.2% 5.8% 6.6% 
 
 

17



 

 

4.8%

4.6%

4.1%

3.8%

3.6%

7.5%

6.4%

5.8%

5.3%

5.0%

7.7%

6.7% 6.7%

6.4%

6.0%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

5.5%

6.0%

6.5%

7.0%

7.5%

8.0%

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

Barnet London England16-18 Annual NEET Percentage

 
Graph 5 - NI 117 for Barnet, London and England 

   

18



 

9.4  Comparison with Statistical Neighbours1 – November 2011 
 
9.4.1 The table below shows Barnet’s performance against statistical neighbours. The Barnet 

16 – 18 NEET level in November 2011 is 1.3 per cent percentage points below the mean 
 indicator and 0.6 per cent percentage points above its closest statistical neighbour 
 Kingston upon Thames. 

 
Table 3 - Performance against statistical neighbours 

ID

Academic 

Age16-18 (Y12-

Y14) NEET %

Y12 

NEET%

Y13 

NEET%

Y14 

NEET%

Barnet 302 4.0% 1.9% 3.7% 6.4%

Mean indicator for statistical neighbours 5.3% 2.5% 5.1% 7.8%

Rank 

(1=Closest) Name "Closeness" ID

Academic 

Age16-18 (Y12-

Y14) NEET %

Y12 

NEET%

Y13 

NEET%

Y14 

NEET%

1 Kingston upon Thames Close 314 3.4% 1.1% 3.0% 5.9%

2 Merton Close 315 4.5% 1.5% 4.5% 6.7%

3 Hillingdon Close 312 4.1% 3.1% 4.1% 5.1%

4 Reading Close 870 9.2% 5.3% 9.5% 13.0%

5 Sutton Close 319 4.2% 1.1% 4.1% 7.1%

6 Hounslow Close 313 4.3% 3.2% 3.6% 6.0%

7 Redbridge Close 317 4.0% 2.3% 3.3% 6.1%

8 Bromley Somewhat close 305 5.5% 1.7% 5.1% 8.5%

9 Richmond upon Thames Somewhat close 318 6.0% 2.2% 5.7% 8.7%

10 Bedford Borough Somewhat close 822 7.6% 3.7% 8.2% 11.1%  
 
9.5.      Youth Unemployment: 16-24 year olds 
 
9.5.1  According to the latest labour market statistics from the Office for National Statistics 
 (ONS), the unemployment rate nationally for 16-24 year olds was 22 per cent in Aug-Oct 
 2011, up 1.2 percentage points from the three months to July 2011. There were 1.03 
 million unemployed 16 to 24 year olds in the three months to October 2011, up 54,000 
 from the three months to July 2011. 
 
9.5.2    Jobseekers Allowance claimants  

 Table four below shows the most recently available data for Jobseekers Allowance 
 claimants; while this is not the official unemployment measure it can provide a good 
 comparative indicator as of November 2011.  
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
Statistical neighbour models provide one method for benchmarking progress. For each LA, these models 
designate a number of other LAs deemed to have similar characteristics. These designated LAs are known 
as statistical neighbours. Any LA may compare its performance (as measured by various indicators) 
against its statistical neighbours to provide an initial guide as to whether their performance is above or 
below the level that might be expected (Department for Education, 2011). 

19



 

Table 4 - JSA Claimants 

Office National Statistics JSA claimants by age (November 2011) 

  
Barnet 
(numbers) 

Barnet 
(%) 

London 
(%) 

Great Britain 
(%) 

By age of claimant 

Aged 18-24 1,590 5.4 7.7 7.8 

Aged 25-49 4,400 3.1 4.1 3.9 

Aged 50 and over 1,095 2 3.3 2.1 

Source: ONS claimant count - age duration with proportions 
Note: % is number of persons claiming JSA as a proportion of resident population of the same age 

 
The tables below show the number and percentage of JSA claimants aged 16 – 24 in 
Barnet for the last 10 years. There is a comparative line for 2008 when the figures were 
at their lowest before the increases related to the recession. In August 2008 there were 
970 claimants aged 18-24, compared to 1,590 in November 2011.  

 
A significant increase in the number of claimants aged 16 - 64 can be seen although the 
proportion of all claimants that are aged 16 - 24 has not seen a significant change either 
locally or nationally. 

 
Table 5 - JSA Claimants 16-24 Barnet 

Jobseeker's Allowance Claimants (numbers) 

Claimants Aged 16-
24 Persons Count  

 Barnet London England 

 London Borough Region Country 

Nov-11 1590   

Aug-10 1430 50040 327870 

Aug-09 1600 56580 386180 

Aug-08 970 35670 233410 

Aug-07 945 36070 208690 

Aug-06 1290 44975 240605 

Aug-05 1290 42935 214110 

Aug-04 1165 39025 185280 

Aug-03 1225 39170 198370 

Aug-02 1155 35810 197705 

Aug-01 875 31180 193665 

 
Table 6 - JSA Claimants 16-24 Barnet Percentage 

Jobseeker's Allowance Claimants (%) 

Claimants Aged 16-24 Persons Percentage 

 Barnet London England 

 London Borough Region Country 

Nov-11 22   

Aug-10 22 24 28 

Aug-09 23 26 30 

Aug-08 25 27 31 

Aug-07 24 27 31 

Aug-06 25 28 31 

Aug-05 27 28 31 

Aug-04 25 26 29 

Aug-03 23 25 28 

Aug-02 21 22 27 

Aug-01 19 21 26 

20



 

 
ONS statistics also show that in November 2011 there were fewer vacancies in Barnet 
for each job centre claimant than in London region (7.2 in Barnet compared to 8.4 in 
London as a whole). 

  
9.6  Work in Barnet to reduce young people not in education, employment or training (NEET) 
 
9.6.1  Integrated Youth Support Service 
 

The work of the Youth Support service targets the reduction of NEET young people up 
to 19 years, working both with young people, their education, training and employment 
providers, including Job Centre Plus, with the aim of maximising the chances of young 
people gaining employment for their adult lives. However our NEET work is focused on 
the younger age group from 16-18 years and we only engage with  issues around youth 
employment from 19-24 years, through work with young people with learning difficulties 
and/or physical disability. 

 
The service works with young people mainly aged 11-19 years (up to 25 for those with 
learning difficulties and/or physical disabilities), providing positive activities for some 
young people from 8 years old, and working with young people aged 19 plus with 
Learning Disabilities/Difficulties or on transition to adult services. The Youth Support 
Service’s main focus as regards youth unemployment is to reduce the number of NEET 
young people, working with those at risk of NEET, as well as those who are NEET, 
aiming to give these young people a good start, building confidence, providing guidance 
on appropriate education or training choices in order to maximise their chances of 
progressing to adult employment. 

 
 Our service provides intensive support both through information, advice and 
 guidance, and by providing positive activities and targeted youth work intervention for 
 those vulnerable young people at risk of becoming NEET. 
 
 Where young people become NEET, personalised contact and follow-up is provided 
 regularly, as well as additional support where possible through prioritising those in 
 groups vulnerable to unemployment such as Leaving Care, or Youth Offending. 
 
9.6.2 Schools Work 
 
 A Targeted Youth Worker is linked to each secondary school in Barnet and also the 
 local colleges, and these work intensively with referred At Risk young people and their 
 families, and provide group work positive activities within the school and local 
 community setting. 
 

Young people at risk of being excluded from school are referred to our year-long 
positive activities programme or to other services, as required, for example, 
drugs/alcohol treatment, youth counselling, and housing support. This support aims at 
providing guidance to ensure they come back into Education, Employment or Training 
and out of our targeted youth support activity. 

 
9.6.3   September Guarantee  
 
  The September Guarantee aims to ensure there is an offer, by the end of September, of 
  a suitable place in learning to young people completing compulsory education. The 
 guarantee was implemented nationally in 2007 and extended to 17 year olds in 2008 to 

21



 

 give those who had enrolled on one-year or short courses, or who had left the activity 
 they chose when leaving school, a further opportunity to engage in learning. 
 The offer must be one of the following: 

• full or part-time education in school, sixth form college, independent learning 

 provider, or FE college;  

• an apprenticeship or programme-led apprenticeship. This must include both the 

 training element  and a job or work placement, where this is a requirement of 

 starting the apprenticeship;  

• Entry to Employment (E2E) or Foundation Learning;  

• employment with training to NVQ level 2.   

 This is an important element of the strategy for reducing the proportion of young people 
 not in education, employment or training, increasing participation, and raising attainment 
 at age 19.  
 
 The aim of the September Guarantee is to offer a place in learning that reflects the 
 needs of the young person. We track the applications and offers of learning made, and 
 collate and share the ‘intended destinations’ data with partners, so that provision can be 
 planned and commissioned to meet the needs of young people. 
 
 Table 7 - Year 11 September guarantee 

Y11 September Guarantee 

  

Offer made Offer Not Appropriate No offer made Not recorded 

2011 92.40% 0.66% 6.94% 0.00% 

2010 97.32% 1.52% 1.16% 0.00% 

2009 95.10% 1.30% 3.60% 0.00% 

2008 93.30% 1.30% 5.40% 0.00% 

 
9.6.4  Destinations Data 
 
 There are plans to introduce two learner destination measures which will show the 
 destinations of young people the year after they leave school or their post-16 provider.  
 

•  The Key Stage 4 measure will be based on activity at academic age 16 (i.e. the 
 year after the young person left compulsory education). 
 
•  The 16-18 measure (Key Stage 5 for schools) will be based on activity in the year 

  after learning at age 16-18. 

 The purpose of these measures are to provide clear and comparable information on the 
 success of schools and colleges in helping all their learners take qualifications that offer 
 them the best opportunity to progress and succeed. It is also intended to make Schools 
 and post 16 providers accountable for ensuring their learners take qualifications that 
 enable them to have a successful transition. 
  
 Data will be published at institutional level alongside performance tables. 
 Initially, it is planned to publish headline data on the proportion of a school or provider’s 
 students that went on to participate in education, training or employment the year after 
 they left that institution. The measures will be introduced in two phases: 
 

22



 

In the first phase measures will be developed that capture all education destinations, this 
measure will be piloted and if robust enough, will be published alongside the KS4 and 
KS5 2011 Performance Tables (published in 2012). 
 
For phase Two, it is intended to include the more complex employment and work based 
learning destinations and aim to publish in 2013. 

 
 Data Sources to be used for the measures include: 
 

• Schools Census Data 

• Awarding Body Data  

• Individual Learner Records (post 16 provider data) 

• Department of Work and Pensions 

• HMRC 

• Higher Education Statistical Authority 

• National Client Caseload Information System (NCCIS) 
 

 NCCIS information is collected locally by the Youth Support Service and this data will 
 provide a key source for the success of this initiative. 
 The 14-19 team have run sessions for schools and post 16 providers on these new 
 responsibilities. 
 
9.6.5  Raising the Participation Age (RPA) 
 
 In 2013 all young people will be required to stay on in learning until the age of 17; and 
 from 2015 until their 18th birthday.  They are not required to stay on at school, and can 
 even go into full-time work.  However they must meet a requirement to study at least 
 part-time.  For the majority of young people it will be about participating at college or 
 school for two years of post-16 education or training. Patterns of post-16 attendance are 
 likely to stay similar to now. 
 

The local authority has a statutory duty to ensure that there are sufficient appropriate 
places to enable all young people participate. In practice this means that the Local 
Authority must articulate local needs to the providers, effectively prompting them to 
supply an appropriate number and range of places to meet demand. The funding for 16-
19 Education and Training currently comes through the Young Peoples Training Agency 
(YPLA), they allocate funding to schools and colleges on the basis of the numbers of 
learners who studied with them in the previous year and is not within the local authority’s 
control. The 14-19 team are currently working in partnership with schools and post 16 
providers to develop provision that will meet the needs of this cohort. 

 
9.6.6 Management Information 
 
 We have detailed monthly reports analysing the NEET population in Barnet and these 
 enable us to focus our efforts where needed.  
 
9.7  CONCLUSION   
 

This report shows that Barnet still has a relatively low percentage of young people aged 
16-18 not in education, employment or training which has been reducing year on year 
since 2005/06. However there is a growing national trend to reflect that LBB could be 
impacted by worsening economic conditions. Figures show that numbers are rising in the 
16-24 group nationally and this increase is in line with the current recession. Labour 

23



 

market statistics show 18-24 years youth unemployment nationally is at the highest level 
since records began in 1992. 

 
Whilst our local NEET figures continue to be low, we should anticipate a rise to reflect 
the challenges of the current recession and changes in the skills set required by a 
changing economy. The Youth Support Service will continue to ensure efficient and 
impartial information, advice and guidance for vulnerable young people in secondary 
schools, colleges and community settings, and work closely with partners through the 
changing 14-19 agenda. By maintaining strong relationships with local education, 
business and training providers the service can continue to offer personalised and 
appropriate training programmes to those young people most at risk of being NEET.  

 
The challenge for Barnet is to maintain the decreasing or low 16-18 years NEET figure 
and mitigate sharp rises in 18-24 years youth unemployment caused by the recession.  
In line with statutory duties, the Children’s Service works closely with partners to support 
those aged 14 to 19. However, a gap has been identified in provision for young people 
aged 19 to 24 who do not have learning difficulties and/or physical disabilities. With this 
in mind, options are currently being considered for a programme of targeted multi-agency 
support for young people aged 16-24 years old who are not in employment, education or 
training. Ensuring that Barnet’s young people have the best possible opportunities to 
engage in education, employment and training remains a key priority for the borough and 
is in the corporate plan for 2012/13.  
 

10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1    Career Vision MI Report for Barnet November 2011 
 
 
Legal – MB  
CFO – JH/MC 

24


	Agenda
	2 Governance of Barnet Partnership Board
	3 Health and Well Being Strategy - Presentation
	4 Supporting Skills and Employment in Barnet with a Focus on Young People Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET)
	Appendix


